
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




              
 
 
 


www.sweetwatersprings.com 


 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA 


July 2, 2019, Regular (Rescheduled) Meeting  
District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 


Guerneville, California 
6:30 p.m. 


 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the June 6, 2019 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 







 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re District Cyber-Security (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
B. Discussion/Action re PFAA contaminants (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re District flushing (Est. time 10 min.) 
 


 
VI. CLOSED SESSION 
 
 A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7 
  Property: APN 071-220-068 17448 River Lane (old Vacation Beach well site) 
  Agency negotiator: Ed Fortner 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Recreation and Park District 
 
 


VII. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
 


VIII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 


  


IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 
 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
 


 (*In order discussed) 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
June 6, 2019 
6:30 p.m. 
 
Board Members Present: Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Tim Lipinski 
 Gaylord Schaap 
   
Board Members Absent: Rich Holmer 
 Pip Marquez de la Plata 
 
Staff in Attendance: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 Christine Hanley, Acting Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Rachel Hundley, Legal Counsel 
      Carlos Abela 
      Sandy & John Vitorello 
      Tiffany O’Hara 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (6:30 p.m.) 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Tim Lipinski at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 
p.m.) 


President Lipinski moved to Amend the Minutes of the May 2, 2019 Board Meeting, because he 
Was absent from the April 6, Board Meeting.  Director Schaap seconded.  Motion carried 3-0. 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.) 
 
President Lipinski reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to 
approve the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Schaap seconded.  The following items 
were approved:  
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the May 2, 2019 Board Meeting, as Amended. 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments. 


 
 C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence:  Letter to the Board from Carlos Abela. 
 


 1







 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:35 p.m.) 


IV. Public comment was made by Sandy Vitorelo, who expressed concerns about fire 
hydrant maintenance and operation within the District.  Brief discussion ensued.  Ms. 
Vitorelo’s  issue was agendized for the July Board meeting.  Comments were made by 
Director Wilder, Director Lipinski and General Manager Ed Fortner. 


 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:40 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A (6:40 p.m.)  Open Public Hearing, Discussion/Action  re:  Resolution 19-06, 


Adopting Water Rates for FY 2018-19 and Analysis of protests received. 
The GM gave a presentation and provided an analysis of this item, noting that 116 
protests had been received.  Board discussion ensued.  No public comment.  Director 
Robb-Wilder moved to approve Resolution 19-06, Adopting Water Rates for FY 2018-19.  
Director Schaap seconded.  Motion carried 3-0., All in favor. 


 
V-B. (7:15 p.m.)  Continue Public Hearing, Discussion/Action  re:  Resolution 19-07, 


Adopting the FY 2018-19 Operating and Capital Improvement Budget. 
 The GM provided an overview of this item.  No Public Comment.  Director Robb-Wilder 


moved to approve Resolution 19-07, Adopting thre FY 2018-19 Operating and Capital 
Improvement Budget.  Director Schaap seconded.  Motion carried 3-0, All in favor. 


 (7:45 p.m.)  Close Public Hearing.  
  


VI. CLOSED SESSION 
 
VI-A. (7:45 p.m.)  Conference with Legal Counsel re:  Anticipated Litigation 
 Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Section 54956.9 
 based on correspondence from Carlos Abela (one potential case). 


 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (Continued) (8:00 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 


 
V-C. (8:00 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Customer construction at 14631 Old Cazadero 


Road.  Discussion ensued between Customer:Carlos Abela, Board Members Schaap, 
Robb-Wilder and Lipinski and GM .Ed Fortner.  Rachel Hundley, Legal Counsel, made 
comment to Mr.Abela.  Further discussion ensued.  Mr. Abela agreed to meet with 
District Field Personnel to establish where his construction will be modified to allow 
unimpeded access to District Service Line.   
 
 


V-D. (8:40 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re District Strategic Planning. 
 The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  This item was 


agendized for the July meeting.  Public comment provided by Tiffany O’Hara. 
 


 
V-E. (8:55 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Water tax legislation 
 The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  This item was 


agendized for the July meeting. 
 


 
VII. CLOSED SESSION (9:05 p.m.) 


  
VII-A (9:05 p.m.)  Conference with Legal Counsel  Anticipated Litigation Significant 


exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Section 54956.9 based on 
correspondence from Carlos Abela (one potential case) 


 2







 3


VIII. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (9:30 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided a report on the following items: 
 
1. Water production and sales 
2. Leaks 
3. Guerneville rainfall 
4. River Lane property sale 
5. 2019 CIP 
6. In-House Construction Projects 
7. Gantt Chart 
 
Brief discussion ensued. 
 
 


VIII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(9:45 p.m.) 


 
1. Director Robb-Wilder announced that she would not be here for the July meeting. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (10:00 p.m.) 
 
1. Cybersecurity 
2. PDA’s & PFA’s Possible Groundwater Contaminants not monitored or regulated 
3. Hydrant Maintenance and Operation 
4. Websites re:  Special Districts in 2020 
5. Low Income Policy Change/Customer Service/Discontinuance Service For 
 Non-Payment Law 
6. Open Spatial 
7. Cost of service discussion 


 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:20 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Christine M. Hanley 
Acting Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  





		I. CALL TO ORDER (6:30 p.m.)

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:35 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:40 p.m.)*

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (Continued) (8:00 p.m.)*

		VIII. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (9:30 p.m.)

		VIII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(9:45 p.m.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT


TO: Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI-A  


FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager


Meeting Date: July 2, 2019 


Subject:  CYBER SECURITY


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  


Receive report from the General Manager.  Discussion and possible action.


FISCAL IMPACT:  


None


DISCUSSION:  


Prior to the June 6, 2019 Board Meeting, President Tim Lipinski raised the issue
of SSWD cybersecurity needs in light of recent news accounts about the City of
Baltimore and other victims of ransomware attacks.  Ransomware is perpetrated
using  a  computer  virus  that  infects  the  target  computer  system.   After  the
attack, the target’s computer system data is encrypted and unusable.  Ransom
is then demanded from the  victim.  The GM and staff have been investigating
any potential SSWD vulnerabilities.  After speaking with Kim Martin with Santa
Rosa Computers, our IT consultant, we are assured that we have taken many
steps to  combat  any threats.   There are no foolproof  systems,  but  Kim did
assure us that our backup files, billing system, virus protection, and trained best
practices keep SSWD quite safe from such threats.  Staff has been reminded to
be  vigilant  about  unknown  emails  and  attachments  as  that  is  the  primary
vulnerability.   Our  Comcast  business  gateway  is  a  premiere  firewall.   Kim
provided a link- https://www.justice.gov/criminal-ccips/file/872771/download for
further information related to cybersecurity.  I am also a member of the FBI
InfraGard, where important information is circulated related to cyber security.
This issue has been prominent in Utility training for many years, certainly since
911.  
 


  








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT


TO: Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI-B  


FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager


Meeting Date: July 2, 2019 


Subject:  PFAAs (PFOS and PFOA) Contaminants Discussion


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  


Receive report from the General Manager.  Discussion and possible action.


FISCAL IMPACT:  


None


DISCUSSION:  


At the June 6, 2019 Board Meeting President Tim Lipinski brought up PAAs, or Perfluorooctane
Sulfonate  (PFOS)  and  Perfluorooctanioc  Acid  (PFOA)  as  contaminants  that  were  getting  press
coverage and suggested a discussion item be put on the July 2nd Board agenda.  These contaminants
are  manmade  chemicals  not  naturally  found  in  the  environment.   The  chemicals  are  used  in
firefighting foams and carpet and clothing treatments.  The production and use of these chemicals
have been phased out in the U.S.  At present, EPA has not issued an MCL for drinking water.  EPA
has issued a health advisory guideline limit.  These chemicals were sampled in the latest round of
UCMR (Unregulated Contaminant Monitoring Regulation) sampling, but SSWD was not part of that
required sampling.  Several Sonoma County water utilities did sample and did not get any detections.
California (SWRCB) adopted EPA Health Advisory Level (HAL) of 70 ng/L as California Response
Level  (RL)  and Notification levels  (NL) of 14ng/L for PFOA and 13 ng/L for  PFOS.   Cost  for
analysis  of  these  chemicals  is  $3,000  to  sample  all  five  wells.   Treatment  options  if  there  are
detections  include  activated  carbon  filtration  and  Reverse  Osmosis  which  are  very  expensive
treatment  technologies.   Depending on the level  of  contamination,  the recommendation could be
abandonment of wells.  


There is pending legislation, AB 841 that requires the SWRCB to update the legislature on a required
work plan to assess which PAAs should be identified as a potential risk to human health.  January 1,
2022 is the deadline for SWRCB to provide the Legislature an update on the assessment.  SWRCB
has implemented an eighteen-month phased initiative to determine extent of any contamination and is
in phase one that includes questionnaires of all airports and military installations requiring workplans.
Phase two requires further monitoring at refineries, fire training areas, and 2017-2018 urban wildfire
areas.  Phase three will include monitoring at manufacturing sites, wastewater plants, and domestic
wells.  At  this  time,  given the  current  data,  I  recommend SSWD not  undertake  sampling of  this
unregulated contaminant.







  








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT


TO: Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI-C  


FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager


Meeting Date: July 2, 2019 


Subject:  FLUSHING DISCUSSION


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  


Receive report from the General Manager.  Discussion and possible action.


FISCAL IMPACT:  


None


DISCUSSION:  


At the May 2, 2019 a member of the public asked about SSWD hydrants and
their use.  The board asked for an agenda item discussing the issue.  Due to the
numerous  capital  projects  and  the  drought  conditions  over  the  last  several
years, SSWD has not been able to flush the entire system.  All dead-end lines
have been flushed regularly and many hydrants have been exercised and flowed
during line repair and other work.  Regarding fire protection, the District keeps
our tanks very full and pressures are more than sufficient for fire suppression.
We  have  a  detailed  list  of  all  our  hydrants  and  a  system map  showing  all
locations.  The system, including the hydrants are in very good shape.  A large
section of the system and many hydrants have been replaced through Capital
projects over the last ten years.  We have also just submitted a flushing plan to
the SWRCB.  In October of 2019 the District will begin a system wide flushing
program and will do so each year going forward.  


  








General Manager’s Report  Page 1 of 6 
July 2, 2019 
 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VIII   
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: July 2, 2019   
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in May were 20,612 units (47.3 AF Guerneville 
cycle), and production was 52.3 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales and production were 
slightly higher (48.7 AF and 60.6 AF, respectively).  Figure 1 shows sales, production and 
% difference for the combined systems; the water loss trend went down a bit this month.  
Looking at the data over the last ten years, water production has dropped approximately 
29%, and sales have dropped 18%.  Water loss percentage was around 30% and now is in 
the 15-20% range.  Much of the production and water loss drop can be attributed to the 
capital projects funded by Redevelopment.  The sales drop is probably due to the drought 
public education; it's unlikely historic use levels will return soon.  Water sales for FY 19 is 
up to 94% of FY 14, the last year unit sales were as high.  


 
2. Leaks:  In June we had 5 total leak repairs taking 23 hours.  Four leaks were in Guerneville 


and one in Rio Nido.  That is less leaks and fewer man-hours compared to the prior month 
and more leaks and hours compared to June one year ago (13 and 96).  Figure 2 shows 
service and main leaks separately with a total leak line as well.  Looking at the leaks chart 
over the last ten years we've come down from around 300 leaks per month to just over 100 
- quite a difference and very noticeable in what the field crews are able to do - address 
ongoing issues with in-house projects instead of chasing leaks every day.     


   
3. Guerneville Rainfall:  June rainfall was 0” of rainfall this month is slightly lower than the 


long-term average and moves the yearly total slightly below the long-term annual average.  
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 6 
July 2, 2019 
 


4. River Lane Property Sale:  Agendized for closed session.        
  


5.   2019 CIP:  Piazza received the filters and media on June 18, 2019.  CQEA forms and a 
permit revision application were submitted to SWCB.     


  
6.   In-House Construction Projects: There were two in-house construction projects in June, 


a replaced and relocated (to avoid roots) service at 16101 Fern Way (GV) and a replaced 
20’ of 1” main and relocated meter to below retaining wall at 14880 Rotunda Way (GV).  
There were no toilet rebates.  


 
7.   Cyber Security: On agenda. 


 
8.   Water Tax Update:  On June 9, 2019 the Conference Committee on the Budget voted for 


a funding solution for disadvantaged communities.  The Governor agreed to the solution 
that is funded by the GGRF and General Fund.  Trailer bill language will be enacted 
through the 2019-2020 Budget. 


 
9.   Discontinuation of Service for Non-payment Law:  In 2018, SB-998 the 


Discontinuation of residential water service:  urban and community water systems or Water 
Shutoff Protection Act was enacted.  In the legislation, many new compliance criteria were 
established including, 60 days notice, provisions for customers 200% below the Federal 
poverty line, and language requirements.  SSWD and all urban and community water 
systems must be in full compliance by February 1, 2020.  Julie and I have begun 
researching the issue and we will modify our policy and procedures to comply.  I have 
reached out to CSDA and will reach out to CRWA for guidance.  


 
10. SSWD Website Update: Julie has been coordinating with Santa Rosa Computers on a 


webpage update.  When we get this process fully coordinated, we will set up a Board 
Members tab to post items such as our Policies and Procedures for Board members only.  
We will make every effort to get the new website fully compliant with all California law. 


 
11. Carlos Abela Old Cazadero Rd.:  Kevin and Jack met onsite with Mr. Abela on June 


17th.  Mr. Abela was cooperative and completed the modifications to the District’s needs on 
June 20th. 


 
12. Strategic Planning:  At the August Board meeting a schedule of meetings for Strategic 


Planning should be discussed. 
  


13.  Gantt Chart: The Gantt Chart is updated for July.    
 


          
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 6 
July 2, 2019 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 







General Manager’s Report  Page 4 of 6 
July 2, 2019 
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 5 of 6 
July 2, 2019 
 


General Manager’s Report  Page 5 of 6 
July 2, 2019 
 


 







General Manager’s Report  Page 6 of 6 
July 2, 2019 
 


May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 FY20+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Budget Preparation
        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP


        2018 CIP Phase Award of Contract


        2018 CIP Construction Starts


·        USDA Bond


        2019 CIP Construction Starts
Urban Water Management Plan Oct-16


Water Rights SCWA Protest
Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal August-17
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


District Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: July 2, 2019  



